Hayward Elementary School Home of the Pioneers 2023-2024

306 S. 14th Phone: 402-873-6641

Mr. Mark Fritch Superintendent Nebraska City, NE 68410 Fax: 402-873-9274

Mr. Scot Davis Principal

PRINCIPALS' MESSAGE

Dear Parents/Guardians and Students:

We welcome you and your child(ren) to the Nebraska City Public Schools. The entire staff at Hayward Elementary is dedicated to providing a positive student experience.

We have made this handbook so that you and your child may know a little more about the school, and thus feel more at home with us. All references to parents in this handbook are, of course, meant to include all guardians of children in our schools. Throughout the year, additional information will be released through bulletins and other sources. It is hoped that this will be read carefully and referred to as needed.

Please read this booklet with the knowledge that your child has a "home away from home" at our elementary school. It will give you an idea of how we operate Hayward and will help us to work together more effectively. Although the information found in this handbook is detailed and specific on many topics, it is not intended to cover every possible situation, and is not a "contract" with the school district.

The administration reserves the right to make decisions about individual situations as necessary. We are just as sincerely interested in your child's success as you are, with your help and cooperation, we hope that we may do the very best job possible. There is no problem that cannot be solved if we all work together.

We wish you and your child a successful year. Thank you for choosing Nebraska City Public Schools.

Sincerely,

Scot Davis Hayward Principal

MISSION STATEMENT

Inspiring a culture of excellence that engages all students in lifelong learning.



Statements of Belief:

We believe all students will:

Be safe, respectful, and responsible citizens Thrive in a culturally diverse environment Learn through cooperative efforts Think and solve problems creatively Become technologically proficient Develop visionary thinking Be life-long learners

Academic Goal: All students will increase Reading skills across content areas. Behavior Goal: All Students will Be Safe, Be Respectful, and Be Responsible!

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section I	
Intent of Handbook	4
Notice of Non-Discrimination	4
Attendance Policies/Absence	4
Accidents	5
Address Change	5
Arrival at School	5
Bell Schedules	5
Bicycles	5
Birth Certificates	5
Bullying	5
Bus Transportation	5
Bus Rules	5-6
Cell Phones	6
Classroom Visit Procedures	6
Complaint Procedure	6-7
Code of Conduct/Student Discipline	7-13
Deliveries	13
Discipline	13
Dismissal	13
Dress For Students	13
Head Lice	13
Health	14
Homework	14
Immunizations	14
Library	14
Lice	14
Lost and Found	14
Medications	14-15 15
Nebraska Reads Act Parent/Teacher Conferences	15
Parties & Party Invitations	15
Personal Property	15
Pets	15
Photographs	15
Property Damage or Loss	15
Report Cards	15
Searches	15
School Closing Information	15
Staff Qualifications	15-16
Telephone Calls	16
Visitors	16
Section II	
Child Abuse and/or Neglect	17
Emergency Operations	17
Evidence of Birth Date	17
Family Educational Rights & Privacy Act (FERPA)	17-18
Missing Persons	18
Parent Involvement Policy	18
Proof of Immunization	18
Physical Evaluation and Vision Exam	19
Rights of Custodial & Non-Custodial Parents	19
Sexual Harassment	19
Special Education Service	19
Student Fees/Materials and Fines	20
Telecommunications Acceptable Use	20
Threat Assessment & Response	20-21
Universal Screening	21
USDA Non-Discrimination Policy	21-22
Video and Audio Recordings	22
Title I- School-Parent-Child Compact	23

INTENT OF HANDBOOK

This handbook is intended to be used by students, parents and staff as a guide to the rules, procedures, and general information about this school district. Each student must become familiar with the handbook, and parents should use it as a resource and assist their children in following the rules contained in it. The use of the word "parents" refers to any adult who has the responsibility for making education-related decisions about a child, including, but not limited to biological parents, adoptive parents and legal guardians.

Although the information in this handbook is detailed and specific on many topics, it is not intended to be all-encompassing or to cover every situation and circumstance that may arise during a school day or school year. This handbook does not create a "contract" with parents, students or staff, and the administration may make decisions and rule revisions at any time to implement the educational program and to assure the well being of all students. The administration is responsible for interpreting the rules contained in the handbook. If a situation or circumstance arises that is not specifically covered in this handbook, the administration will make a decision based on applicable school district policies, and state and federal statutes and regulations.

NOTICE OF NON-DISCRIMINATION

The school district does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, disability, or age in its programs and activities and provides equal access to the Boy Scouts and other designated youth groups. The

following person has been designated to handle inquiries regarding the nondiscrimination policies:

Name: Mr. Scot Davis Title: Hayward Principal Address: 306 S. 14th St., Nebraska City, NE 68410 Telephone: (402) 873-6641 E-mail: sdavis@nebcityps.org

For further information on notice of nondiscrimination, visit http://wdcrobcolp01.ed.gov/CFAPPS/OCR/contactus.cfm for the address and phone number of the office that serves your area or call 1-800-421-3481. For additional prohibited discrimination and related information, please

review school district Policy 2006 - "Complaint Procedures".

Aviso de no discriminación

Este distrito escolar no discrimina por motivos de raza, color, religión, origen nacional, sexo, estado civil, discapacidad o edad o en la admisión o acceso a, o tratamiento de empleo, en sus programas educativos y actividades y proporciona igual acceso a los niños exploradores (boy scouts) y otros grupos juveniles designados. Cualquier persona que tenga preguntas sobre el cumplimiento de este distrito escolar con los reglamentos que implementan el Título VI, el Título IX o Sección 504 está dirigida a contactar el Mr. Scot Davis por escrito al 306 S. 14th St., Nebraska City, NE 68410 o por teléfono al (402) 873-6641. Para asistencia adicional, tambien puede contactar (La Oficina de Derechos Civiles, Oficina de la Ciudad de Kansas) Office for Civil Rights (Kansas City Office), U.S. Department of Education 8930 Ward Parkway, Suite 2037, Kansas City, MO 64114-3302, Teléfono: (816) 268-0550, Fax (816) 823-1404 TDD: 877-521-2172, Correo Electrónico al <u>OCR.KansasCity@ed.gov</u>. También vea la sección de "Discriminación y acoso" a continuación.

ATTENDANCE POLICIES

Nebraska City Public Schools complies with the Nebraska Compulsory Education Law.

Pupils are expected to be in attendance everyday that school is in session. Good attendance is one of the best indicators of future success in school. If a child is not present in school he/she is counted absent regardless of the reason for the absence.

The parents of any student, who is absent four (4) days from school for any reason, will receive a letter from the principal. A second letter will be sent home at eight (8) absences and every four (4) absences thereafter. Parents of students who are absent ten (10) days in a semester may be requested to conference with the building principal. The purpose of the conference is to develop a plan to improve attendance.

A letter may be sent to the county attorney if absences exceed twenty (20) days cumulative. Building administrators will take documented medical issues and family crises into consideration.

ABSENCES AND TARDINESS

Parents/Guardians should notify the elementary school office on the morning of a child's absence before 8:30 a.m. If you have not made contact by 8:30 a.m., the school will attempt to make contact with you. It is important that we confirm the whereabouts of your child. It is essential that students arrive at school on time and stay for the entire day. Valuable information may be missed if they arrive late or leave early. Students are to be in their classrooms at the start of the day and are expected to remain the entire school day. If tardies become excessive (4 in a quarter) a letter the building principal may call the parents in order to develop a plan to correct the issue. Students are considered tardy if they arrive at school five minutes after school has started.

A Student who arrives after 9:45 a.m. or leaves before 1:45 p.m. and does not return to school will be marked a $\frac{1}{2}$ day absent. Appointments that cause a student to miss more than an 1 $\frac{1}{2}$ hours during the school day will also be counted as a $\frac{1}{2}$ day absent.

ACCIDENTS

The School (School District) shall not be responsible for any medical costs incurred by any student who is injured while attending School, any class, any School function, on the premises of the School or at any off premises location at any activity authorized or sanctioned by the School (School District).

ADDRESS CHANGE

Parents should notify the office immediately of any change in address, phone number or family doctor. All unlisted numbers will be kept confidential.

All new students or transfers should contact the school principal as soon as possible. If transfer is known in advance, we would appreciate early notice.

ARRIVAL AT SCHOOL

Children are not to arrive on school grounds earlier than 20 minutes before school begins unless riding the bus. No adult supervision is provided before then. Children get cold and discipline problems arise when students arrive too early before school starts. If consistently arriving at school prior to the time supervision is provided administrators may contact parents about this situation.

BELL SCHEDULES

NORTHSIDE	
Supervision Begins	
Morning Bell	8:10
Tardy Bell	
Dismissal Bell	

HAYWARD

Supervision Begins	7:50
Morning Bell	
Tardy Bell	
Dismissal Bell	3:25

BICYCLES

Students are to park their bikes in the appropriate bike racks or where designated. Students are advised but not required to keep their bicycles locked. Under no circumstances is any student to borrow or tamper with a bicycle that is not their own. Once a bicycle is parked in the morning it should not be ridden until school is dismissed.

BIRTH CERTIFICATES

Board Policy requires that all new enrolling students must show a certified birth certificate. A copy will be made for school files and the original will be returned to the parent or guardian. If there are any questions, the school principal should be consulted.

BULLYING

Nebraska City Public Schools strives to maintain a positive educational atmosphere for students. The school district recognizes the negative impact that bullying has on student health, welfare, safety, and the school's learning environment. Bullying is defined as an ongoing pattern of physical, verbal, or electronic abuse on school grounds or at school sponsored activities. Nebraska City Public Schools have adopted strategies and practices to reinforce positive behaviors and to discourage inappropriate behaviors. Behaviors defined as bullying, will result in disciplinary action as deemed appropriate by the school administrator.

BUS TRANSPORTATION

Bus transportation is provided between the elementary buildings, and for rural students. Residential students wishing to ride the bus should go to the Northside or Hayward buildings by 7:40 a.m. A bus will take them to their school. A bus will also return them to their neighborhood school at the end of the day. Union and rural students will work out their schedules with the transportation department.

BUS RULES

In the interest of safety, students riding in a bus will be expected to listen to the bus driver and follow all bus rules. It is a privilege, not a right, for students to ride the bus. The administration reserves the right to suspend bus-riding privileges at any time regardless of the number of violations committed. The bus driver does not administer the below actions, the school administration does. Direct all questions to the transportation supervisor and/or school administration.

Basic Rules- (Not intended to cover all situations)

Obey bus driver	Sit down
No profanity	Face the front
No bullying	No fighting or play fighting
Keep hands & objects inside the bus	Don't throw objects inside or outside of bus

1st - Violation: the driver will give a verbal warning. If the behavior continues the bus driver, transportation supervisor or elementary principal will fill out a bus referral form. This report will be given to the elementary principal who will notify the parents. Additional consequences may be given at this time.

2nd - Violation: same as above, except that privileges of riding the bus will be suspended for 1 week (5 school days).

 3^{rd} - Violation: same as #1, except that privileges of riding the bus will be suspended for 2 weeks (10 school days).

4th - Violation: same as #1, except that privileges of riding the bus may be suspended for the rest of the semester.

CELL PHONES

Students are required to shut off their cell phones and put them in their backpack or locker during school hours. If students violate this rule their cell phones will be taken and held in the principal's office until the end of the school day.

1st - Violation: Cell phone will be returned to the student at the end of the school day and parents will be notified.

2nd- Violation: Cell phone will only be returned to parent or guardian.

3rd- Violation: Cell phone will only be returned to parent or guardian. The Principal may assign additional consequences.

CLASSROOM VISIT PROCEDURES

To assure a successful school observation, teachers and administrators ask visitors to follow these guidelines:

- 1. Parents/guardians are invited to make appointments with the building principal to visit classes and other instructional activities. The principal shall give permission after determining that parental/guardian observation would not disrupt the activity.
- 2. All observation sessions will be planned in advance so as not to create conflict with the teacher and student schedule. Therefore, arrangements must be made prior to the day of the classroom visit or observation. The principal will limit the duration of any observation to 60 minutes in order to avoid distraction or disruption to the teacher's schedule and classroom atmosphere. Additional observation time will not be permitted absent unusual circumstances, in the sole discretion of the building principal. No parent may observe or visit a classroom during an assessment.
- 3. The principal reserves the right to decline the request for classroom observation if it is determined that such an observation would cause undue disruption in the educational process.
- 4. For security reasons, visitors are required to sign in at the school office, to receive a visitor's badge, and indicate the name of the teacher or destination before proceeding to contact any other person in the building or on the school grounds. All visitors are asked to sign out when leaving the building.
- 5. To protect the learning environment, the parent/guardian should be the only visitor in the classroom during the observation. An observer, other than the parent/guardian, must be approved by the principal and have written consent from the parent/guardian describing the reason for the visit and/or observation. Out of respect for the teaching environment, parents/guardians are asked not to bring younger siblings or children while observing in the classroom or to utilize any electronic equipment such as cell phones while in the classroom. Observers should not disrupt the learning environment by engaging students or the teacher in conversation. A follow-up meeting may be scheduled as needed to answer questions or concerns.
- 6. During the observation, the principal or his/her designee may be present in the observed setting in order to accommodate follow-up discussion or clarify questions that may arise.

*All aspects of individual student confidentiality must be preserved and respected.

COMPLAINT PROCEDURE

3.

Good communication helps to resolve many misunderstandings and disagreements, and the board encourages patrons and school staff to discuss their concerns with appropriate school personnel in an effort to resolve problems. When such efforts do not resolve matters satisfactorily, a complainant should follow the procedures set forth below:

- 1. The first step is for the complainant to speak directly to the person with whom he or she is dissatisfied, or to who is responsible for the practice or regulation with which he or she is dissatisfied. For example, a parent who is unhappy with a classroom teacher should initially discuss the matter with the teacher.
- 2. The second step is for the complainant to speak to the building principal, superintendent of schools, or president of the board of education, as set forth below.
 - a) Complaints about the operation, decisions, or personnel within a building should be submitted to the principal of the building.
 - b) Complaints about the operations of the school district or a building principal should be submitted to the superintendent of schools.
 - c) Complaints about the superintendent of schools should be submitted to the president of the board of education.
 - When a complainant submits a complaint to an administrator, the administrator shall:
 - a) Determine whether the complainant has discussed the matter with the staff member involved.
 - 1) If the complainant has not, the administrator will urge the complainant to discuss the matter directly with that staff member.
 - 2) If the complainant refuses to discuss the matter with the staff member, the administrator shall, in his or her sole discretion, determine whether the complaint should be pursued further.
 - b) Strongly encourage the complainant to reduce his or her concerns to writing.
 - c) Interview the complainant to determine:
 - 1) All relevant details of the complaint;

- 2) All witnesses and documents which the complainant believes support the complaint;
- 3) The action or solution, which the complainant seeks.
- Respond to the complainant. d)
- 4. A complainant who is not satisfied with the building principal's decision regarding a complaint may appeal the decision to the superintendent.
 - a) This appeal must be in writing.
 - b) The superintendent will investigate, as he or she deems appropriate.
 - c) Upon completion of this investigation, the superintendent will inform the complainant in writing of his or her decision
 - A complainant who is not satisfied with the superintendent's decision regarding a complaint may appeal the decision to the board.
 - This appeal must be in writing. a)
 - The board may, but is not required to, receive statements from interested parties and witnesses relevant to the complaint b) appeal.
 - The board will notify the complainant in writing of its decision. c)
 - There is no appeal from a decision of the board. d)
- When a formal complaint about the superintendent of schools has been filed with the president of the board, the president shall: 6. a)
 - Determine whether the complainant has discussed the matter with the superintendent.
 - If the complainant has not, the board president will urge the complainant to discuss the matter directly with the 1) superintendent.
 - 2) If the complainant refuses to discuss the matter with the superintendent, the board president shall, in his or her sole discretion, determine whether the complaint should be pursued further.
 - Strongly encourage the complainant to reduce his or her concerns to writing. b)
 - Determine, in his or her sole discretion, whether to refer the matter to the board of education for consideration at a regular or c) special meeting.

CODE OF CONDUCT / STUDENT DISCIPLINE

Board of Education Discipline Policy:

5.

The Board of Education considers the safety of district students, personnel, and visitors of primary importance. Behavior and attitudes are attributing factors lending to the overall safety within the school. The Board has outlined minimum standards of behavior in a Code of Conduct; this code should be the foundation from which all disciplinary actions are based. To be effective it is imperative that the Code of Conduct be consistently administered on all levels.

The Board of Education may authorize the emergency exclusion, short-term or long-term suspension, expulsion, or mandatory reassignment of any student from school for conduct prohibited by the Code of Conduct, the board's rules, or standards as established by LB 503 (1976) as amended by LB 1250 (1994) if such action complies with the procedures required by this act.

Further, the Gun Free Schools Act and LB 658 requires the expulsion from school for a period of not less than one year of any student who is determined to have knowingly and intentionally possessed, used, or transmitted a firearm on school grounds, in a school owned vehicle being used for a school purpose, or at a school sponsored activity or athletic event.

Administrative regulations shall be set forth regarding this policy and the Code of Conduct. Each building shall develop action plans to implement and enforce these administrative regulations in a fair and consistent manner. The Superintendent shall report student expulsions or staff removals for cause to the Board President, at his earliest convenience after the discipline has been taken. At the Presidents and/or Superintendent's discretion other board members will be notified.

I WILL - Be Safe / Be Respectful / Be Responsible

Treating others with dignity and respect is the responsibility of students, faculty, staff, administrators, board members, parents, and guests involved in or visiting the Nebraska City Public Schools.

Definition of Discipline

An ongoing process designed to teach, model, and use appropriate strategies to promote the behaviors necessary to ensure a safe and productive learning environment by changing unacceptable behavior to acceptable behavior.

Belief Statements

- Teaching and learning of the intended curriculum for all students is the highest priority. Therefore, the misbehavior of one student -1. a) will not be allowed to interfere with the learning opportunities of another student, b) will not be allowed to interfere with the teacher's responsibility to teach all students, and c) will not excuse the misbehaving student from also successfully completing the learning objectives.
- 2. Changing behavior takes time.
- Discipline is a part of the daily routine--not a disruption. 3.
- Self-discipline is the expected outcome. 4.
- Every discipline situation is an opportunity to teach expected behavior. 5.
- Teaching and modeling appropriate behavior, along with implementing consequences for inappropriate behavior, is the best way to 6. help change unacceptable behaviors to acceptable behaviors.
- Expected behaviors must be communicated, taught, and modeled on a daily basis throughout the school year. 7.
- Punishment by itself cannot change behaviors. 8.

- 9. In handling unacceptable behaviors, the focus will be on judging the behavior of a student, not on judging the student.
- 10. Staff members will not respond to misbehavior as if it were a personal attack on them.
- 11. Staff will show respect to students and parents at all times, regardless of the students' and parents' behavior.
- 12. Parents have a responsibility to ensure their children's behaviors do not take away from a safe and productive learning environment for others.
- 13. Staff will handle all discipline situations in a professional manner.

Discipline Expectations

- 1. Students and staff will demonstrate self-respect, respect for others, and respect for all things in their environment.
- 2. A safe and productive learning environment will be maintained for all individuals at school and at school-related activities.
- 3. Conflicts will be handled without the use of violence or threats of violence and with respect for the rights of all.
- 4. Staff and students will be expected to be on task at all times while in the classroom or at other learning activities.
- 5. Staff will provide learning opportunities for misbehaving students with support from parents and guardians.
- 6. Staff, students, and parents will assist misbehaving students to change their unacceptable behavior to acceptable behavior.

General Discipline Philosophy

The school district has the authority to discipline students who behave inappropriately on the way to school while using district transportation, at school, during lunch, on the way home while using district transportation, and at all school activities (home and away or any time while on school or district property).

- 1. The school district's discipline is guided by the following principles:
- 2. The school district's discipline policy is intended to ensure that students take responsibility for their behavior.
- 3. Behavior expectations and the consequences for failing to meet those expectations will be clearly communicated to all students and their parents.
- 4. The severity of consequences for violating behavior expectations will generally be progressive in nature. That is, sanctions will increase with each instance of misconduct; however, each instance will be assessed on its own facts, and sanctions will be imposed based on the severity of the misconduct.
- 5. Parents play a vital role in supporting and reinforcing the school district's expectations of their students.
- 6. Behavior expectations apply to all students; consequences are enforced consistently without regard to a student's academic record or achievement.

Extracurricular activities including athletics, cheerleading, band, chorus, and club activities, are governed by the Student Activity Handbook. Students who are involved in extracurricular activities may face consequences related to the activity in addition to the consequences discussed in this handbook.

The school district reserves the right to refer to the appropriate non-school agency any act or conduct of its students which may constitute a crime under federal, state, county, or local law. The administration will cooperate with these agencies in their investigations.

Levels of Unacceptable Behavior

LEVEL ONE:	Productive Personal Environment Behaviors that occur in the classroom and affect only the learning of the misbehaving
student.	Minimum consequence: Teacher making eye contact with student
	Maximum consequence: Detention
LEVEL TWO:	<u>Productive Classroom Environment</u> Behaviors that occur in the classroom and interfere with the learning of others.
	Minimum consequence: Teacher making eye contact with student
	Maximum consequence: In-School Suspension
LEVEL THRE	E: <u>Orderly Environment</u> Behaviors that occur that are not intended to cause physical harm to another individual, are not
illegal, but do ne	gatively affect an orderly environment.
	Minimum consequences: teacher making eye contact with student
	Maximum consequences: short-term suspension
LEVEL FOUR:	Safe Environment Behaviors that are intended to cause another individual physical harm and/or are illegal.
	Minimum consequences: one day out-of-school suspension

Maximum consequences: one year out of school

Examples of Unacceptable Behaviors

LEVEL ONE: incomplete work, sleeping, inattentiveness, loitering, wearing hats in building

LEVEL TWO: leaving the room without permission, inappropriate movements, disruption of environment (noises, faces, improper attire etc.), talking without permission, failure to abide by classroom rules

LEVEL THREE: petty theft, derogatory remarks, improper language, elementary grade fighting, racial remarks, disrespect, destruction of property, noncompliance, intimidation, public displays of affection, going to parking lot or leaving the campus without permission, any other words or actions that would negatively affect an orderly environment.

LEVEL FOUR: weapons, arson, bomb threats, sexual harassment, felony theft, drugs or look-a-likes, tobacco, alcohol, physical assault (fighting), bodily harm or threatening bodily harm, lewdness, engaging in any other activity forbidden by the laws of Nebraska which constitutes a danger to others or substantially interferes with school purposes.

Forms of School Discipline

Administrative and teaching personnel may take actions regarding student behavior which are reasonably necessary to aid the student, further school purposes, or prevent interference with the educational process. Such actions may include, but need not be limited to, counseling of students, parent conferences, rearrangement of schedules, requirements that a student remain in school after regular hours to do additional work, restriction of extracurricular activity, or requirements that a student receive counseling, psychological evaluation, or psychiatric evaluation upon the written consent of a parent or guardian to such counseling or evaluation. The actions may also include in-school suspensions during the day or mandatory attendance at Saturday school. When in-school suspensions, after-school assignments, Saturday School or other disciplinary measures are assigned, the student is responsible for complying with such disciplinary measures; and a failure to serve such assigned discipline as directed will serve as grounds for further discipline, up to expulsion from school.

In-School Suspension

The building administrator may require a student to serve in-school suspension. Students will be required to serve suspension at a designated location where they will study and participate in campus clean up. There will be zero tolerance for behavior problems from students placed in in-school suspension. Students not completing their In-School Suspension will face further disciplinary action.

Short-Term Suspension

The Principal or the Principal's designee may exclude a student from school or any school function for a period of up to five school days (short-term suspension) on the following grounds:

- 1. Conduct constituting grounds for expulsion as hereinafter set forth; or
- 2. Other violations of rules and standards of behavior adopted by the board of education or the administrative or teaching staff of the school, which occur on or off school grounds, if such conduct interferes with school purposes or there is a nexus between such conduct and school.

The following process will apply to short-term suspensions:

- 1. The Principal or the Principal's designee shall make a reasonable investigation of the facts and circumstances. In addition, such short-term suspension will be made only after a determination that the suspension is necessary to help any student, to further school purposes, or to prevent an interference with school purposes.
- 2. Prior to commencement of the short-term suspension, the student will be given oral or written notice of the charges against the student. The student will be advised of what he/she is accused of having done, an explanation of the evidence the authorities have, and an opportunity to explain his/her version of the facts.
- 3. Within 24 hours or such additional time as is reasonably necessary following the suspension, the Principal or administrator will send a written statement to the student and the student's parent or guardian, describing the student's conduct, misconduct or violation of the rule or standard and the reasons for the action taken. The student and his/her parent or guardian will be given the opportunity to have a conference with the Principal or administrator ordering the short-term suspension before or at the time the student returns to school. The Principal or administrator shall determine who in addition to the parent or guardian is to attend the conference.

Long-Term Suspension

The Principal or the Principal's designee may exclude a student from school or any school function for a period of 6 to 19 school days (long-term suspension) based on conduct constituting grounds for expulsion as hereinafter set forth. The process for long-term suspension is hereinafter set forth.

Expulsion

1. Meaning of Expulsion. Expulsion shall mean exclusion from attendance in all schools, grounds and activities of or within the system for a period not to exceed the remainder of the semester in which it took effect unless the misconduct occurred (a) within 10 school days prior to the end of the first semester, in which case the expulsion shall remain in effect through the second semester, or (b) within 10 school days prior to the end of the second semester, in which case the expulsion shall remain in effect for summer school and the first semester of the following school year, or (c) unless the expulsion is for conduct specified in these rules or in law as permitting or requiring a longer removal, in which case the expulsion shall remain in effect for the period specified therein. Such action may be modified or terminated by the school district at any time during the expulsion period.

2. Summer Review. Any expulsion that will remain in effect during the first semester of the following school year will be automatically scheduled for review before the beginning of the school year. The review will be conducted by the hearing officer who conducted the initial expulsion hearing or a hearing officer appointed by the Superintendent in the event no hearing was previously held or the initial hearing officer is no longer available or willing to serve, after the hearing officer has given notice of the review to the student and the student's parent or guardian. This review shall be limited to newly discovered evidence or evidence of changes in the student's circumstances occurring since the original hearing. This review may lead to a recommendation by the hearing officer that the student be readmitted for the upcoming school year. If the school board or board of education or a committee of such board took the final action to expel the student, the student may be readmitted only by action of the board. Otherwise the student may be readmitted by action of the Superintendent.

3. Suspension of Enforcement of an Expulsion: Enforcement of an expulsion action may be suspended (i.e., "stayed") for a period of not more than one full semester in addition to the balance of the semester in which the expulsion takes effect, and as a condition of such suspended action, the student may be assigned to a school, class, or program and to such other consequences which the school district deems appropriate. In lieu of other authorized educational programs to which the student may be assigned, such school, class, or program may be offered as a community-centered classroom and may include experiences for the student as an observer or aide in governmental functions, as an on-the-job trainee, and as a participant in specialized tutorial experiences or individually prescribed educational and

counseling programs. Such programs shall include an individualized learning program to enable the student to continue academic work for credit toward graduation. At the conclusion of the designated period: (1) if the student has satisfactorily participated in the school, class, or program to which such student has been assigned, the student shall be reinstated and permitted to return to the school of former attendance or to attend other programs offered by the district; and action to expunge the record of the expulsion action may be taken at the discretion of the Superintendent or his or her designee, or (2) if the student's conduct has been unsatisfactory, the expulsion action shall be enforced. The Principal or the Principal's designee shall make the determination whether or not the student's participation and conduct has been satisfactory.

4. Students Subject to Juvenile or Court Probation. Prior to the readmission to school of any student who is less than 19 years of age and who is subject to the supervision of a juvenile probation officer or an adult probation officer pursuant to the order of the District Court, County Court, or Juvenile Court, who chooses to meet conditions of probation by attending school, and who has previously been expelled from school, the Principal or the Principal's designee shall meet with the student's probation officer and assist in developing conditions of probation that will provide specific guidelines for behavior and consequences for misbehavior at school (including conduct on school grounds and conduct during an educational function or event off school grounds) as well as educational objectives that must be achieved. If the guidelines, consequences, and objectives provided by the Principal or the Principal's designee are agreed to by the probation officer and the student, and the court permits the student to return to school under the agreed to conditions, the student may be permitted to return to school. The student may, with proper consent upon such return, be evaluated by the school for possible disabilities and may be referred for evaluation for possible placement in a special education program. The student may be expelled or otherwise disciplined for subsequent conduct as provided in Board policy and state statute.

Grounds for Short-Term Suspension, Long-Term Suspension, Expulsion or Mandatory Reassignment:

The following student conduct shall constitute grounds for long-term suspension, expulsion, or mandatory reassignment, subject to the procedural provisions of the Student Discipline Act, Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-254 through 79-296, when such activity occurs on school grounds, in a vehicle owned, leased, or contracted by a school being used for a school purpose or in a vehicle being driven for a school purpose by a school employee or by his or her designee, or at a school-sponsored activity or athletic event:

- 1. Use of violence, force, coercion, threat, intimidation, or similar conduct in a manner that constitutes a substantial interference with school purposes;
- 2. Willfully causing or attempting to cause substantial damage to property, stealing or attempting to steal property of substantial value, or repeated damage or theft involving property;
- 3. Causing or attempting to cause personal injury to a school employee, to a school volunteer, or to any student. Personal injury caused by accident, self-defense, or other action undertaken on the reasonable belief that it was necessary to protect some other person shall not constitute a violation of this subdivision;
- 4. Threatening or intimidating any student for the purpose of or with the intent of obtaining money or anything of value from such student;
- 5. Knowingly possessing, handling, or transmitting any object or material that is ordinarily or generally considered a weapon;
- 6. Possessing, using, selling, or dispensing alcohol, tobacco, narcotics, drugs, inhalants, or being under the influence of any of the above; possessing drug paraphernalia; or engaging in the selling, using, possessing, or dispensing of a controlled substance or an imitation controlled substance, as defined in section 28-401. (Note: the term "under the influence" for school purposes has a less strict meaning than it does under criminal law; for school purposes, the term means any level of impairment and includes even the odor of alcohol on the breath or person of a student; also, it includes being impaired by reason of the abuse of any material used as a stimulant);
- 7. Public indecency;
- 8. Sexually assaulting or attempting to sexually assault any person. In addition, if a complaint has been filed by a prosecutor in a court of competent jurisdiction alleging that the student has sexually assaulted or attempted to sexually assault any person, including sexual assaults or attempted sexual assaults, the student is subject to suspension, expulsion, or mandatory reassignment regardless of where the conduct took place. For purposes of this subdivision, sexual assault shall mean sexual assault in the first degree and sexual assault in the second degree as defined in sections 28-319 and 28-320, as such sections now provide or may hereafter from time to time be amended;
- 9. Truancy or failure to attend assigned classes or assigned activities;
- 10. Tardiness to school, assigned classes or assigned activities;
- 11. The use of language, written or oral, or conduct, including gestures, which is profane or abusive to students or staff members. Profane or abusive language or conduct includes, but is not limited to, that which is commonly understood and intended to be derogatory toward a group or individual based upon race, gender, national origin, or religion;
- 12. Dressing in a manner which violates the school district's dress code and/or is dangerous to the student's health and safety, a danger to the health and safety of others, or which is disruptive, distractive or indecent to the extent that it interferes with the learning and educational process;
- 13. Willfully violating the behavioral expectations for those students riding the school district's buses;
- 14. Sexting (a combination of sex and texting) the act of sending sexually explicit messages or photos electronically;
- 15. Bullying as defined by Nebraska law;
- 16. Repeated and/or willful violation of the district's acceptable use rules regarding computers or other electronic devices;
- 17. Engaging in any other activity forbidden by the laws of the State of Nebraska which activity constitutes a danger to other students or interferes with school purposes. This provision will be enforced for conduct that occurs off school grounds if it causes or may reasonably be expected to cause a substantial interference with school purposes; or
- 18. Repeated violation of any rules and standards validly established by the Board of Education or school officials if such violations constitute a substantial interference with school purposes;

In addition, a student who engages in the following conduct that occurs on school grounds, in a vehicle owned, leased, or contracted by a school being used for a school purpose or in a vehicle being driven for a school purpose by a school employee or by his or her designee, or at a school-sponsored activity or athletic event shall be expelled for the remainder of the school year in which it took effect. If the misconduct occurs during the first semester, and if the expulsion for such conduct takes place during the second semester, the expulsion shall remain in effect for the first semester of the following school year, with the condition that such action may be modified or terminated by the school district during the expulsion period on such terms as the administration may establish:

- 1. The knowing and intentional use of force in causing or attempting to cause personal injury to a school employee, school volunteer, or student, except if caused by accident, self-defense, or on the reasonable belief that the force used was necessary to protect some other person and the extent of force used was reasonably believed to be necessary, or
- 2. The knowing and intentional possession, use, or transmission of a dangerous weapon other than a firearm.

In addition, a student who is determined to have brought a firearm to school, or to have possessed a firearm at school, shall be expelled from school for a period of not less than one year. The Superintendent may modify such one-year expulsion requirements on a case-by-case basis, provided that such modification is in writing. The term "to school" or "at school" means on school grounds, in a vehicle owned, leased, or contracted by a school being used for a school purpose or in a vehicle being driven for a school purpose by a school employee or by his or her designee, or at a school-sponsored activity or athletic event.

Bringing a firearm or other dangerous weapon to school for any reason is discouraged; however, a student will not be subject to disciplinary action if the item is brought or possessed under the following conditions:

- 1. Prior written permission to bring the firearm or other dangerous weapon to school is obtained from the student's teacher, building administrator and parent.
- 2. The purpose of having the firearm or other dangerous weapon in school is for a legitimate educational function.
- 3. A plan for its transportation into and from the school, its storage while in the school building, and how it will be displayed must be developed with the prior written approval by the teacher and building administrator. Such plan shall require that such item will be in the possession of an adult staff member at all times except for such limited time as is necessary to fulfill the educational function.
- 4. The firearm or other dangerous weapon shall be in an inoperable condition while it is on school grounds.

Due Process Afforded to Students Facing Long-term Suspension or Expulsion

The following procedures shall be followed with regard to any long-term suspension, expulsion or mandatory reassignment.

- 1. The Principal shall prepare a written summary of the alleged violation and the evidence supporting the alleged violation with the Superintendent or his/her designee.
- 2. If the Principal determines that the student must be suspended immediately to prevent or substantially reduce the risk of (a) interference with an educational function or school purpose or (b) a personal injury to the student himself or herself, other students, school employees, or school volunteers, and a notice of intent to discipline the student by long-term suspension, expulsion, or mandatory reassignment is filed with the Superintendent or his or her designee, the student may be suspended by the Principal until the date the long-term suspension, expulsion, or mandatory reassignment takes effect if no hearing is requested or, if a hearing is requested, the date the hearing examiner makes the report of his or her findings and a recommendation of the action to be taken to the Superintendent.
- 3. The Principal or his/her designee shall serve by registered or certified mail or by personal service to the student and the student's parents or guardian with a written notice within two school days of the date of the decision to recommend long-term suspension or expulsion. Said notice shall include the following:
 - (a) The rule or standard of conduct allegedly violated and the acts of the student alleged to constitute a cause for long-term suspension or expulsion including a summary of the evidence to be presented against the student as submitted by the Principal or assistant Principal.
 - (b) The penalties to which the student may be subjected and the penalty which the Principal or his or her designee has recommended in the charge.
 - (c) A statement explaining the student's right to a hearing upon request on the specified charges.
 - (d) A description of the hearing procedures provided by these policies along with procedures for appealing any decision rendered at the hearing.
 - (e) A statement that the administrative representative, legal counsel for school, the student, the student's parents, or the student's representative or guardian shall have the right to examine the student's academic and disciplinary records and any affidavits to be used at the hearing concerning the alleged misconduct, and the right to know the identity of the witnesses to appear at the hearing and the substance of their testimony.
 - (f) A form or a request for hearing to be signed by such parties and delivered to the Principal or his or her designee in person or by registered or certified mail.
 - 4. Nothing in this policy shall preclude the student, student's parents, guardian or representative from discussing and settling the matter with appropriate school personnel prior to the hearing stage.
 - 5. In the event that the Principal has not received a request for hearing within five school days following receipt of the written notice, the punishment recommended in the charge by the Principal, or his or her designee, shall automatically go into effect.
 - 6. If a hearing is requested more than 5 school days following the actual receipt of the written notice, but not more than 30 calendar days after actual receipt, the student shall be entitled to a hearing; but the punishment imposed may continue in effect pending final determination.

- 7. If a request for hearing is not received within 30 calendar days following the mailing or delivery of the written notice, the student shall not be entitled to a hearing.
- 8. In the event that a hearing is required to be provided, the Superintendent shall appoint a hearing officer.

Hearing Procedure

1. <u>Hearing Officer</u>. The hearing officer shall be any person designated by the Superintendent. The hearing officer shall be an individual who has had no involvement in the charge, will not be a witness at the hearing, and who has not brought the charges against the student. It shall be the duty of the hearing officer to remain impartial throughout all deliberations. The hearing officer shall be available prior to any hearing held pursuant to this policy to answer any questions the administrative representative, the student, the student's parents, or guardian may have regarding the nature and conduct of the hearing.

2. <u>Administrative Representative</u>. The Principal may appoint an administrative representative to present the facts and evidence. Such administrative representative may be an attorney or may be represented by an attorney, but any such attorney shall not advise the hearing officer or parties who may review the proceedings as their counsel.

3. <u>Notice of Hearing</u>. If a hearing is requested within five school days of receipt of the notice, the hearing officer shall, within two school days after being appointed, give written notice to the administrative representative, the student, and the student's parents or guardian of the time and place for the hearing. The hearing shall be scheduled within a period of five school days after it is requested. No hearing shall be held upon less than two school days' actual notice to the administrative representative, the student, and the student's parents, or guardian, except with the consent of all of the parties.

4. <u>Continuance</u>. Upon written request of the student or the student's parents or guardian, the hearing officer shall have the discretionary authority to continue from time to time the hearing. In addition, the hearing officer may continue the hearing upon any good cause.

5. <u>Access to Records</u>. The administrative representative, the student, the student's parent or guardian, and the legal counsel of the student shall have the right to examine the records, affidavits, and the statements of any witnesses in the possession of the Public School Board of Education at any reasonable time prior to the hearing.

Hearing Procedure. The hearing shall be attended by the hearing officer, the student, the student's parents or guardian, the student's 6. representative if any, and the administrative representative. Witnesses shall be present only when they are giving information at the hearing or with the consent of both parties. The student may be excluded at the discretion of the hearing officer at times when the student's psychological evaluation or emotional problems are being discussed. The student or the student's parents or guardian or both may be represented by legal counsel. The hearing examiner may exclude anyone from the hearing when his/her actions substantially disrupt an orderly hearing. The formal rules of evidence shall not apply at the hearing. The administrative representative shall present to the hearing officer statements, in affidavit form, of any person having information about the student's conduct and the student's records, but not unless such statements and records have been made available to the student, the student's parents, guardian or representative prior to the hearing. The information contained in such records shall be explained and interpreted prior to or at the hearing to the student, parents or guardian, or representative at their request, by appropriate school personnel. The student, the student's parents, guardian, or representative, the administrative representative, or the hearing officer may ask witnesses to testify at the hearing. Such testimony shall be under oath and the hearing officer shall be authorized to administer the oath. The student, parent, guardian or representative, administrative representative, or the hearing officer shall have the right to question any witness giving information at the hearing. The student may testify in his/her own defense in which case he/she shall be subject to cross-examination. However, a student need not testify; and if he/she chooses not to, no conclusion may be drawn there from. Any person giving evidence by written statement or in person at a hearing shall be given the same immunity from liability as a person testifying in a court case. A single hearing may be conducted for more than one student if in the discretion of the hearing examiner a single hearing is not likely to result in confusion or prejudice to the interest of any of the students involved. If during the conduct of such a hearing, the hearing examiner concludes that any of such student's interests will be substantially prejudiced by a group hearing, or that confusion is resulting, the hearing examiner may order a separate hearing for each or any of said students

7. <u>Availability of Witnesses</u>. The hearing officer will have the authority to subpoena any witnesses to the hearing and shall make reasonable efforts to assist in obtaining the attendance of any witnesses requested by the student, the student's parents, or guardian or their legal representative.

8. <u>Record</u>. The proceedings of the hearing shall be recorded at the expense of the school district.

9. <u>Findings</u>. Within a reasonable time after the conclusion of the hearing, the hearing officer shall prepare and submit to the Superintendent of schools his/her written findings and recommendation as to disposition. This report shall explain, in terms of the needs of both the student and the school board, the reasons for the particular action recommended. Such recommendation may range from no action, through the entire field of counseling, to long-term suspension, expulsion, or mandatory reassignment.

10. <u>Review by Superintendent</u>. The Superintendent of schools shall review the findings and recommendations of the hearing officer and in his/her discretion may also review any of the facts and evidence presented at the hearing; and based upon such report and the facts, shall determine the sanctions to be imposed. However, the Superintendent may not impose a more severe sanction than that imposed by the hearing officer.

11. <u>Notice of Determination</u>. Written notice of the findings and recommendations of the hearing officer and the determination of the Superintendent of schools shall be made by certified registered mail or by personal delivery to the student and the student's parents or guardian. Upon receipt of such written notice by the student and/or parents and guardian, the determination of the Superintendent shall take immediate effect.

12. <u>Appeal to Board</u>. The student, student's parents or guardian may, within seven school days following the receipt of the Superintendent's decision, submit to the Superintendent of schools a written request for a hearing before the Board of Education.

13. <u>Review by Board of Education</u>. Upon receipt of the request for review of the Superintendent's determination, the Board of Education or a committee of not less than 3 members shall, within 10 school days, hold a hearing on the matter. Such hearing shall be made on the record except that the board may admit new or additional evidence to avoid substantial threat of unfairness. Such new evidence shall be recorded. The Board of Education or committee thereof may withdraw to deliberate privately upon the record and new evidence. Any such deliberation shall be held in the presence only of board members in attendance at the appeal proceeding, but may be held in the

presence of legal counsel who has not previously acted as the administrative representative in presenting the school's case before the hearing officer. If any questions arise during such deliberations which require additional evidence, the Board of Education or committee thereof may require the hearing to receive such evidence, subject to the right of all parties to be present. A record of any such new or additional evidence shall be made and shall be considered as a part of the record; and based upon the evidence presented at the hearing before the hearing officer, and such new or additional evidence, the Board of Education or the committee shall make a final disposition of the matter. The Board may alter the Superintendent's disposition of the case if it finds his/her decision to be too severe, but it may not impose a more severe sanction. A designated method of giving notice by the Board of Education or committee thereof, if required, for any Board review shall be by posting on the schoolhouse door.

14. <u>Final Decision of Board of Education</u>. The final decision of the Board shall be delivered to the student and parents or legal guardian of the student by personally delivering the same or by mailing the same by certified or registered mail.

DELIVERIES

It is the practice at the Elementary buildings that deliveries of flowers, balloons, etc. for students will be held in the office until the end of the day. No flower/balloon type deliveries for students will be accepted for Valentine's Day. These practices are to minimize classroom disruptions and hurt feelings.

DISCIPLINE

In the classroom, discipline problems will be the responsibility of the teacher. However, discipline problems that continue to disrupt the learning environment may be referred to the Principal. Exclusion from class for a brief time may be necessary in order to provide time for the Principal and teacher to confer with parents in regard to a solution of the problem. A teacher stands in the place of the parent while the pupils are under his/her control and has the same right to command and enforce obedience, which the parent has in the home.

DISMISSAL

Children will not be dismissed from school before dismissal time without direct, phone, or note permission from their parents or an authorized adult. Instruct your child never to leave school with a stranger.

Children who are not waiting for a ride or involved in a supervised activity are to leave the school grounds promptly after dismissal. Children may return to use the playground after 5:00 p.m. on days when school is in session.

DRESS FOR STUDENTS

The school administration and teachers encourage all to dress in a fashion that reflects a style appropriate for a school day or school activity. Students are prohibited from wearing the following attire at school or at school-sponsored events: This list is not inclusive of all items, which may be excluded:

- 1. Clothing displaying indecent, suggestive or profane writing, pictures or slogans
- 2. Clothing that advertises or displays alcohol, tobacco or any illegal substance
- 3. Headgear including hats, bandannas, sweatbands, stocking caps, do-rags, scarves, and visors are prohibited.
- 4. All shorts/dresses/skirts are to reach to mid-thigh or longer. With the arm hanging at the side and fingers extended, the length of the shorts/dresses/skirts must extend beyond the tip of the longest finger.
- 5. Hairstyles, which distract from the learning process or the health and safety for either the student or others
- 6. Any clothing that could cause damage to others or school property
- 7. Clothing or articles, which are soiled, torn, ragged, or sagging.
- 8. Costumes of any kind except for those allowed on designated days.
- 9. Bare "midriff" (belly button) styles, see-through and low cut blouses, halters, tank tops or thin-strapped tops (spaghetti straps)
- 10. Coats during school hours unless the student has permission from a faculty member
- 11. Clothing with tears or holes that expose flesh or underclothes

Students who violate dress code guidelines will be required to correct the violation by changing into something appropriate at school or returning home to change. Repeated dress code violations may result in additional consequences.

For playing outdoors in wet and snowy weather your child needs snow boots/rubber boots and snow pants. Shoes should be sent with the boots for indoor wear. Be sure boots, mittens, caps, scarves, etc. are labeled with your child's name. If the temperature drops below 15 degrees F with or without wind chill, children will stay indoors.

HEAD LICE

Upon discovering the presence of live lice or louse eggs, the school will notify the student's parent(s) or guardian(s). The student will be isolated from contact with other students and their belongings, and a parent or guardian must pick the child up from school immediately.

By Nebraska DHHS regulation, students are not permitted to return to school until the student is treated such that no live lice or louse eggs can be detected. The parent(s) or guardian(s) will be required to treat the student and accompany the student to school to be examined. The student cannot ride the school bus until the district has cleared the student to return to school.

<u>HEALTH</u>

Nebraska Department of Health and Human Services prescribes a schedule for screenings based on current medical and public health practice. The schedule requires a physical screening by the school nurse for all kindergarten through fourth grade students. The results of the screening will be recorded on their permanent record. Parents will receive a written notice of any defective symptoms found, and are urged to correct them as soon as possible. The school DOES NOT diagnose or treat an illness or injury. Our policies are:

1. First-aid for sudden illness or injury.

2. In the event of a life threatening respiratory emergency, the school will administer medications as directed on any student's Emergency Action Plan. If that plan does not lead to relief of symptoms or there is no plan in place, Epinephrine by EpiPen and albuterol by nebulizer will be administered per standing order, which has been reviewed by a physician and mandated by the State Department of Education. Any individual treated for symptoms with epinephrine at school will be transferred to medical facility by rescue squad at the family's expense.

3. The school's obligation continues until after the emergency has been placed in the care of the family or physician of their choice. 4. Exclusion of children: having a temperature of 100 degrees or more for 24 hours after symptoms have stopped; with a suspicious contagion; symptoms of vomiting, headaches, active head lice; etc.

5. Any pupil with a rash that the school nurse cannot identify must be excluded until the disappearance of the rash and any other symptoms. If the parent has consulted their family physician and he recommended readmission with a written notice to this effect, then admittance is acceptable.

6. Children with cases of chickenpox must be excluded from school until each sore has developed a scab, and they no longer have a fever.

Parents can help the school health program by completing the health appraisal form sent home. You are asked to do this just once during your child's school term, with short forms being sent out each year thereafter, requesting only new information regarding illness, etc., which has occurred during the past school year and summer.

Nebraska State Law requires a physical examination for all children entering school in Nebraska for the first time. This includes all kindergarten students and any transfer students who are coming from another state.

It is necessary to have a telephone number other than your own to call in case of an emergency. Be sure this party is aware that you have given the school their number to call.

Children, who must remain indoors because of health reasons, must bring a note to that effect. The school takes special care in maintaining respect for each child's health and well-being. No child will be sent outside during inclement weather if it in any way would jeopardize his/her health. We ask parents to cooperate by not sending notes asking for their child to remain inside during recess period unless it is an absolute necessity. A note from the doctor may be required of requests for keeping children in from recesses for extended periods of time.

HOMEWORK

The teachers may require homework if it is a requirement of the curriculum or they feel that it will be a benefit to the student. This assignment will be given with the thought of what is best for your child and is designed as an extension of the school instruction, not as busy work. We appreciate any help you may give the child, but doing their homework for them is not helpful. Encouraging them to finish and turn in their homework on time is important. Thank you for teaching them to be responsible.

IMMUNIZATIONS

State law requires students to be immunized against hepatitis B, measles, mumps, rubella, polio, diphtheria, pertussis, tetanus and varicella prior to enrollment in school. Students are required to be immunized against varicella or provide month/year the student had the chickenpox. Proof of immunizations is required. You must either have met immunization requirements for enrollment or be working toward completing requirements as fast as medically possible to be provisionally enrolled or receive an exemption.

LIBRARY

Books may be checked out of the library for two weeks. The student is responsible for any damage to the book and if any book is lost, report cards can be held until restitution is made.

Each elementary school has a library collection, accessible to students and teachers at all times. A library aide is usually on duty or available for assistance.

LOST AND FOUND

The school office will manage all lost and found items turned into the office. Parents and students are encouraged to check in with the office if an item was lost at school. The school is not liable for any items that were brought to school and lost on school grounds. Unclaimed articles will be donated to a local charity or otherwise disposed of at the conclusion of each semester.

Pupils are discouraged from bringing costly items or large sums of money to school. Parents are advised to mark children's clothing and possessions.

MEDICATIONS

Please do not send any medication to school with your child unless absolutely necessary. Dosages for medicines should be arranged to be given during non-school hours if possible. If medications must be given during school hours, the medication must be kept in the office. A permission form listing the student's name, the name of the medication, amount of medicine to be given, and the reason for the medication must be filled out and given to the office. For any long-term prescription medications, the form must have a doctor's signature. Forms are available in the office. Over-the-counter medications must be in the original container and age appropriate. Prescription medications must be in the original

prescription bottle, labeled with the student's name, name of the medication, dosage, and directions for administering. Parents assume responsibility for monitoring the effects of the medication.

NEBRASKA READS ACT

A student's ability to read is a critical predictor of academic and lifelong success. The Nebraska Reading Improvement Act (Section 79-2601-79-2607) ensures all students are ready for success in and beyond school. Starting in kindergarten, a strong reading policy and research-based programs help students get on track to grade level reading. The Nebraska Reading Improvement Act and the Nebraska READS initiative are designed to give students every opportunity to gain proficiency in early literacy skills that will support the later growth of comprehension skills and analysis of complex text.

To comply with the Nebraska Reads Act, Nebraska City schools will utilize the NWEA Measures of Academic Progress (MAP) assessment to identify students who qualify for the Nebraska Reads Act in grades K-3. The MAP assessment will be given three times during the school year. If a child qualifies based on the state determined scores, parents will be notified and a Individualized Reading Plan (IRiP) will be developed for the child. If a child who previously qualified, scores at or above the state score for two assessments in a row they will be exited from the IRiP.

PARENT/TEACHER CONFERENCES

We are going to request at least two scheduled conferences with you during the 1st and 3rd quarters. Additional conferences may be initiated by either the parent or the teacher at any time. Conferences help the teacher to understand the child and in many cases bring the parents into a closer working relationship with the school.

PARTIES & PARTY INVITATIONS

Various parties may be held each year: This includes: Halloween, Christmas and Valentine's Day. Times will vary and will be determined by the staff in each school.

Please try and arrange for private party invitations to be delivered outside of the school day.

PERSONAL PROPERTY

The school provides the necessary equipment for classroom and school day activities. Students should not bring items such as athletic equipment, electronic devices, toys, or other similar personal items to school unless they have the prior permission of their classroom teacher or a school administrator. The school is not responsible for damaged or lost personal items or equipment.

<u>PETS</u>

Please see that dogs and other pets are kept home and not allowed to follow pupils to school. If a child has a special pet he would enjoy showing to his classmates, he may do so if previous arrangements have been made with his teacher and that a parent accompanies the pet to the classroom for a short visit. It has been the school's policy to call the dog pound or police for unclaimed or unidentified pets.

PHOTOGRAPHS

Photographs and videos of students may be used for educational purposes in demonstrations and web pages. Individual students will not be identified in photographs and videos used in educational demonstrations and web pages without parent permission.

PROPERTY DAMAGE OR LOSS

Students will be charged for malicious damage to school property. Fines will be assessed at the end of the school year for lost or damaged books.

REPORT CARDS

Report cards are given out at the end of each quarter.

SEARCHES

All property owned by the Nebraska City Public School District including lockers assigned to students, book bags, and vehicles on property owned by the Nebraska City Public Schools may be inspected by school authorities at any time. Items found as a result of such inspections will be turned over to the building principal.

SCHOOL CLOSING INFORMATION

In all cases of inclement weather or for any other reason that schools are closed, the information will be given over the local radio stations. If school is closed in the middle of the day, schools will be kept open until all children have left. The principal may excuse teachers when they are no longer needed to supervise pupils.

Parents who have baby-sitters should give them the above information and any other information pertaining to school activities.

STAFF QUALIFICATIONS

The No Child Left Behind (NCLB) Act of 2001 gives parents the right to acquire information about the professional qualifications of their child's classroom teachers. Upon request, the Nebraska City Public Schools will give parents the following information about their child's classroom teacher:

- 1. Whether the teacher has met State qualifications and licensing criteria for the grade levels and subject areas in which the teacher provides instruction.
- 2. Whether the teacher is teaching under an emergency or provisional teaching certificate.
- 3. The baccalaureate degree major of the teacher. Parents may also get information about other graduate certification or degrees held by the teacher, and the field of discipline or the certification or degree.

NCPS will also, upon request and in a timely manner, tell parents whether their child is being provided services by a paraprofessional and, if so, the qualifications of the paraprofessional. The request for information should be made to the administrator of the child's building. The District will also give parents timely notice if the child has been assigned, or has been taught for four or more consecutive weeks, by a teacher who does not meet the requirements of the NCLB Act.

TELEPHONE CALLS

Students must ask permission of a teacher or the secretary before using the school telephone. Phone calls are to be limited to those of necessity only. Students will not be called out of class for a telephone call unless it is an emergency.

VISITORS

Parents are encouraged to visit school anytime except the first week and the last two weeks of school. For safety reasons, all visitors are required to check in at the Office to receive a Visitor's Badge. If you plan to observe a classroom or other instructional activity please refer to our *classroom visit procedures* on page 5-6.

Section II

CHILD ABUSE AND/OR NEGLECT

The Code of Nebraska requires all school employees to report suspected child abuse or willful neglect. Reporting shall be both written and orally to the Child Abuse Center of the local Department of Public Welfare. If there is reason to believe that immediate protection for the child is advisable, an oral report shall also be made to any appropriate law enforcement agency. Anyone participating in good faith in these procedures shall have immunity from any liability, civil or criminal. Laws providing communication shall not apply in cases of suspected child abuse or neglect. Any school employee who knowingly and willfully fails to report suspected child abuse is guilty of a misdemeanor.

Emergency Operations

Nebraska City School Board is committed to providing all students and staff a safe environment. Emergency Operations teams are in place to: perform threat assessment, provide safety training, and respond in times of crisis.

Threat Assessment: The Emergency Operations team is responsible for investigating all reported threats to school safety, evaluating the significance of each threat, and devising an appropriate response. The threat assessment team shall work closely with the crisis team in planning for crisis situations.

Safety Training: Provide information and training to students and staff including, but not limited to:

Evacuate and Bus Drills - Evacuate and Bus evacuation drills at regular intervals are required by law and are an important safety precaution. It is essential that when the first signal is given everyone obeys orders promptly and clears the building or vehicles by the prescribed route as quickly as possible. The teacher in each classroom or vehicle will give the students instructions.

Lockdown Procedures - A lockdown may be called by the building principal or other designee if he or she has reason to believe that the students and staff may be in danger. In such cases, students and staff will remain in a locked classroom. They must move away from windows and doors. Students and staff must remain quiet at all times. In the event of a lockdown, for their safety, students will not be allowed to leave the building. Parents will not be free to pick up their child during the lockdown. The Nebraska City Police Department will be notified of the school lockdown and required to offer assistance.

Secure Procedures – A lockout may be called by the building principal or other designee if he or she has reason to believe that a threat is possible from outside the building. In such cases, all exterior doors will be locked with no one (including parents and staff) being allowed to enter or exit the building. All classes will proceed as normal within the building.

Shelter Drill- The alarm for an adverse weather drill will be an intercom announcement. Students will proceed to the first floor, and then all boys will use the west stairway to the shower area of the boy's locker room. Girls will use the east stairway to the girl's locker room. At all times during the drill, THERE WILL BE SILENCE so as to hear approaching danger and to be able to hear instructions. Once in the locker rooms students must remain quiet until the "ALL CLEAR" is sounded. A verbal announcement will send students back to classes.

Crisis: Emergency Operation team members will be available to students and staff in the event of a crisis. Information will be communicated to stakeholders through parent email and/or mass phone call/text.

EVIDENCE OF BIRTH DATE

Upon admission to the Nebraska City Public Schools the parents/legal guardian of any child preschool to grade 12, shall furnish (a) a certified copy of the student's birth certificate issued by the state in which the child was born, or (b) other reliable proof of the child's identify and age, (i.e. naturalization or immigration documents showing date of birth or official hospital birth records) accompanied by an affidavit explaining the inability to produce a copy of the birth certificate.

An affidavit is defined as a notarized statement by an individual who can verify the reason a copy of the birth certificate cannot be produced. If the parents/legal guardian fails to provide this information, they will receive in writing a statement explaining the need for them to provide this information within thirty days. If the parents/legal guardian fails to comply with this request within 30 days the school shall notify them in writing that they need to comply within 10 days. If compliance is not obtained within that 10-day period, the school shall immediately report the matter to the Nebraska City Police Department for investigation. If the affidavit requested appears inaccurate or suspicious in form or content, this shall be reported immediately to the Nebraska City Police Department.

FAMILY EDUCATIONAL RIGHTS & PRIVACY ACT (FERPA)

The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) (20 U.S.C. § 1232g; 34 CFR Part 99) is a Federal law that protects the privacy of student education records. The law applies to all schools that receive funds under an applicable program of the U.S. Department of Education. Nebraska City Public Schools must have written permission from the parent or eligible student in order to release any information from a student's education record. However, FERPA allows schools to disclose those records, without consent, to the following parties or under the following conditions (34 CFR § 99.31):

o School officials with legitimate educational interest

- o Other schools to which a student is transferring
- o Specified officials for audit or evaluation purposes
- o Appropriate parties in connection with financial aid to a student
- o Organizations conducting certain studies for or on behalf of the school
- o Accrediting organizations
- o To comply with a judicial order or lawfully issued subpoena
- o Appropriate officials in cases of health and safety emergencies
- o State and local authorities, within a juvenile justice system, pursuant to specific State law

Schools may disclose, without consent, "directory" information such as a student's name, address, telephone number, date and place of birth, honors and awards, and dates of attendance. However, schools must tell parents and eligible students about directory information and allow parents and eligible students a reasonable amount of time to request that the school not disclose directory information about them. Schools must notify parents and eligible students annually of their rights under FERPA. The actual means of notification for Nebraska City Public Schools is accomplished through student handbooks, the district newsletter, in the annual report, and on the district website at http://www.nebcity.esu6.org. If you as a parent do not want directory information shared, please submit this request in writing to the building principal by September 1st of each year.

MISSING PERSONS:

A missing person shall mean a person 16 years or younger reported to any law enforcement agency as abducted or lost. Upon notification by the Nebraska State Patrol of a missing student, the school will flag the student's records in such a way that any personnel looking at such birth certificate or record shall be alerted to the fact that that birth certificate or record is of a missing person. Any school requested to forward a copy of a transferred student's record shall not forward such record to the requesting school if the record has been flagged as that of a missing person. The school will notify the Nebraska City Police Department of the request and that the student is a reported missing person. Any school or person acting on behalf of a school shall be immune from civil and criminal liability for acts or omissions, which occur as a result of the requirements of the Missing Children Identification Act.

PARENT INVOLVEMENT POLICY

The Nebraska City Public Schools, after having conducted a public hearing concerning parental involvement and participation in the school district, determined that it shall be the policy of the Nebraska City Public Schools to provide access to parents to all textbooks, tests, curriculum materials, and any other instructional materials used by the school.

It shall also be the policy of the Nebraska City Public Schools, in the event that any parent has a complaint or objection concerning any materials to make available personal conferences for the parent and appropriate school personnel to discuss those concerns identified. The district will prepare a complaint form, which may be used by any parent to express objections to particular instructional materials. The complaint forms will seek information including, but not limited to, the specific instructional material that has been identified for the complaint, the reason for the complaint, and a proposed solution for resolving the complaint from the parent's perspective. The Administration will respond in writing to the person filing the complaint with an appropriate response. (Ref. 79-4, 244 [1])

It shall also be the policy of the Nebraska City Public Schools to permit parents, upon a reasonable advance request, to attend and monitor courses, assemblies, counseling sessions, and other activities (such as FBLA, DECA, FFA, etc). (Ref. 79-4, 244 [2])

It shall also be the policy of the Nebraska City Public Schools to encourage communications from parents concerning when a parent believes it to be appropriate for their student to be excused from testing, classroom instruction, and other school experiences that the parent finds objectionable. The school district shall include a provision in the complaint form to receive information from a parent concerning what specific testing, classroom instruction, or other school experience the parent finds objectionable, the basis for the parent's objection, and proposed solution for dealing with the objection that would be satisfactory to the parent. (Ref. 79-4, 244[3])

It shall also be the policy of the Nebraska City Public Schools to provide full access to the records of the students to the parent or guardian as set forth in State of Nebraska Law 79-4,157 and the Federal Education Right to Privacy Act during regular business hours of the school or wherever the student's records may regularly be maintained by the district. (Ref. 79-4, 244[4])

It shall also be the policy of the Nebraska City Public Schools to notify, through normal means (i.e. school newsletters), a parent or guardian of any student who will be asked to complete a standard norm referenced or criterion referenced test. Parents will be notified, when it is reasonable to do so, where a sample of these tests might be reviewed and the date upon which the tests will be administered. (Ref. 79-4, 244 [5]) Prior to any school sponsored survey being administered to the students of the district, it shall be the duty of the schools to notify the parent or guardian of each student involved in the survey the nature of the survey, the date and time when the survey will be administered, and the proposed use of the survey results. Any parent, who requests in writing that their student be excused from completing the survey, shall have the request honored. (Ref. 79-4, 244 [6])

It shall also be the policy of the Nebraska City Public Schools to prohibit any diminution in grade, credit, or other determent to the student as a result of having been excused from any school experience or school activity because of objections by their parent or guardian under this policy. This policy shall be reviewed, on a periodic basis, by the Education Committee of the Nebraska City Public Schools Board of Education. Policy Approved August 11, 2003.

PROOF OF IMMUNIZATION

Prior to enrollment, each Nebraska City Public Schools student shall provide a written immunization history, signed by the student's physician, parent or guardian, verifying that the student has received the required vaccines so as to be protected by immunization.

Any student who does not comply shall not be permitted to enter school, or if provisionally enrolled or enrolled without compliance, shall not be permitted to continue in school until evidence of compliance or provisional requirements continue to be pursued or an exemption from compliance is given.

The cost of immunizations and any required documentation shall be borne by the parent or guardian, not the Nebraska City Public School district.

PHYSICAL EXAM AND VISION EVALUATION

Physical Exam:

*Admission to school requires submission of evidence of a physical examination within six months prior to entrance into the beginner grade (Kindergarten or, if Kindergarten is not attended, the first grade) and in the case of a transfer from out of state, to any grade. *Evidence of a physical examination is also required within six months prior to entrance in the seventh grade.

Vision Evaluation:

*Admission to school requires submission of evidence of a visual evaluation within six months prior to entrance into the beginner grade (Kindergarten or, if Kindergarten is not attended, the first grade) and in the case of a transfer from out of state, to any grade. A student who fails to meet the foregoing requirements shall not be permitted to enroll or to enter school, or if provisionally enrolled or enrolled without compliance, shall not be permitted to continue in school until evidence of compliance or an exemption from compliance is given. **The cost of the physical examination and vision evaluation shall be borne by the parent or guardian.**

RIGHTS OF CUSTODIAL & NON-CUSTODIAL PARENTS

The school district will honor the parental rights of natural and adoptive parents unless those rights have been altered by a court.

The term "custodial parent" refers to a biological or adoptive parent to whom a court has given primary physical and legal custody of a child, and a person such as a caseworker or foster parent to whom a court has given legal custody of a child.

The district will not restrict the access of custodial and non-custodial parents to their students and their students' records, unless the district has been provided a copy of a court order that limits those rights. If the district is provided such a court order, school officials will follow the directives set forth in the order.

The district will provide the custodial parent with routine information about his or her child, including notification of conferences. The district will not provide the non-custodial parent with such information on a routine basis, but will provide it upon the non-custodial parent's request unless it has been denied by the courts.

A non-custodial parent who wishes to attend conferences regarding his or her child will be provided information about conference times so both parents may attend a single conference. The district is not required to schedule separate conferences if both parents have been previously informed of scheduled conference times.

If either or both parents' behavior is disruptive, staff members may terminate a conference and reschedule it with appropriate modifications or expectations.

SEXUAL HARASSMENT

Sexual harassment will not be tolerated in the Nebraska City Public Schools. Students should report any concerns or questions to a teacher, school counselor, or the administration. The incident will be investigated and appropriate actions may be taken.

SPECIAL EDUCATION SERVICE

The Nebraska City Public Schools provide a service designed to identify children (birth to age 21) who may be at risk for learning and could benefit from special services. Children who display delays in learning, coordination, emotional development, language and speech development, or have physical, visual, or hearing impairments may qualify to receive free assistance if you live in the Nebraska City Public School District.

If your child is found eligible for services, an individual educational program will be developed by you, the parent, with the people who will help you meet your child's special needs. These people can include a teacher, speech pathologist, occupational and physical therapists or others. The program will build on your child's strengths and improve areas of weakness. The program will provide support, encouragement, and assistance for you in working with your child. For more information, contact your school principal.

Students with disabilities and their families have specific rights outlined in state and federal law, including administrative processes by which they may challenge the educational services being provided by the school district. Therefore, the appeal process contained in this policy may not be used to challenge decisions made by a student's individualized education plan (IEP) team or 504 team.

Complaints about the educational services provided to a student with a disability, including but not limited to services provided to a student with an IEP, access to curricular and extracurricular activities, and educational placement must be submitted to the school district's Director of Special Education. The Director of Special Education will address the complaint in a manner that he/she deems appropriate and will provide the complainant with a copy of the Notice of IDEA Parental Rights promulgated by the Nebraska Department of Education.

Complaints about the educational services provided a student with a disability pursuant to a Section 504 plan must be submitted to the school district's 504 Coordinator. The 504 Coordinator will address the complaint in a manner that he/she deems appropriate and will provide the complainant with a copy of the Notice of Section 504 Parental Rights adopted by the board of education.

STUDENT FEES, MATERIAL REQUIREMENTS AND FINES POLICY

The Board of Education of the Nebraska City Public Schools authorizes the school staff to assess fees, charges or fines to students, as provided by the Public Elementary and Secondary Fee Authorization Act. Student fees authorized by this act include:

- Participation in school sponsored extracurricular activities, which do not count toward graduation.
- Admission fees and transportation charges for spectators attending extracurricular activities.
- Post secondary education costs for tuition and other expenses associated with obtaining credit from a post secondary educational
- institution.
- Transportation for option enrollment students.
- Reimbursement for school district property lost or damaged by a student.
- Summer school or night school.
- Breakfast and lunch programs.

Students and their parents are expected to provide minor personal or consumable items for specific courses and activities, such as pencils, pens, crayons, colored pencils, scissors, paper, folders, markers, erasers, glue sticks, notebooks, binders, tissues, rulers, calculators, computer disks, book bags, physical education clothing / shoes that conform to the general guideline for student dress and other supplies as needed. A public hearing on student fees will be held on the proposed fees and other items expected to be furnished by students. The adopted fee policy

A public hearing on student fees will be held on the proposed fees and other items expected to be furnished by students. The adopted fee policy will be published in the student handbooks.

When a student maintains possession of project course materials upon completion, the student and their parent may provide the materials for that project or pay the school for the consumable materials used for that project.

All money collected from the students will be deposited in the Student Fee Fund. Money will be expended from the Student Fee Fund for the purposes for which the money was collected from students.

The Board recognizes that some students and their families are not financially able to pay the fees or provide the items expected by the school. Fees may be waived for students that qualify for the federal free and reduced lunch program. Applications to have fees waived are available upon request and must be filled out prior to fees being waived. Students qualifying for, but not participating in, the free or reduced lunch program may still submit the student waiver fee.

The board will annually determine the dollar amount to be charged to students or others for fees. It shall be the responsibility of the superintendent, in conjunction with the principal, to develop administrative regulations regarding this policy.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS ACCEPTABLE USE POLICY

Nebraska City Public Schools will provide telecommunications access to students and staff for the purpose of enhancing the delivery of educational services and improving the productivity of offices, departments, and other organizations within the district. This access is limited to educational, career, and professional development activities.

The use of this telecommunication access is a privilege, not a right. Inappropriate use may result in limitation or cancellation of such privileges. Actions taken for inappropriate use will be determined by the district's disciplinary codes as well as local, state, and federal laws. The district will enforce acceptable use regulations by providing for the supervision and regulation of learning activities requiring access to telecommunication systems.

THREAT ASSESSMENT & RESPONSE

The board of education is committed to providing a safe environment for members of the school community. Students, staff and patrons are urged to immediately report any statements or behavior that makes the observer fearful or uncomfortable about the safety of the school environment.

1. Definitions

- **a.** A **threat** is an expression of a willful intent to physically or sexually harm someone or to damage property in a way that indicates that an individual poses a danger to the safety of school staff, students or other members of the school community.
 - i. The threat may be expressed/communicated behaviorally, orally, visually, in writing, electronically, or through any other means.
 - ii. A transient threat is an expression of anger or frustration that can be quickly or easily resolved.
 - iii. A substantive threat is an expression of serious intent to harm others which includes, but is not limited to, any threat which involves a detailed plan and means.
- b. A **threat assessment** is a fact-based process emphasizing an appraisal of observed (or reasonably-observable) behaviors to identify potentially dangerous or violent situations, to assess them and to manage/address them. Threat assessment is the process of identifying and responding to serious threats in a systematic, data-informed way.
 - i. The threat assessment process is distinct from student disciplinary procedures. The mere fact that the district is conducting a threat assessment does not by itself necessitate suspension, expulsion or emergency exclusion without complying with state law and board policy related governing those actions.
 - **ii.** The threat assessment process is distinct from specialized instruction which a student with a disability may receive from the school district. The school district will not change a student's educational placement as that term is used in the Individuals with Disabilities in Education Act *solely* as part of a threat assessment.

2. Obligation to Report Threatening Statements or Behaviors.

All staff and students must report **substantive threats** to a member of the administration immediately and comply with any other mandatory reporting obligations. Staff and students who are unsure whether a threat is substantive or transient should report the situation. Staff and students must make such reports regardless of the nature of the relationship between the individual who initiated the threat or threatening behavior and the person(s) who were threatened or who were the focus of the threatening behavior. Staff and students must also make such reports regardless of where or when the threat was made or the threatening behavior occurred.

THREATS OR ASSAULTS WHICH REQUIRE IMMEDIATE INTERVENTION SHOULD BE REPORTED TO THE POLICE AT 911.

3. Threat Assessment Team

The threat assessment team (team) shall consist of ______. Not every team member needs to participate in every threat assessment. If the threat has been made by or is directed towards, a student with a disability, the threat assessment team must include a staff member who is knowledgeable about special education services or Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act, as appropriate. Neither the student nor their student's family members are part of the threat assessment team.

The team is responsible for investigating all reported threats to school safety, evaluating the significance of each threat, and devising an appropriate response. The threat assessment team shall work closely with the crisis team in planning for crisis situations. The threat assessment team shall be familiar with mental health resources available to students, staff and patrons and shall collaborate with local mental health service providers as appropriate.

4. Threat Assessment Investigation and Response

When a threat is reported, the school administrator shall initiate an initial inquiry/triage and, in consultation with members of the threat assessment team, make a determination of the seriousness of the threat as expeditiously as possible. The school administrator must contact law enforcement if the administrator believes that an individual poses a clear and immediate threat of serious violence.

If there is no reasonably apparent imminent threat present or once such an imminent threat is contained, the threat assessment team will meet to evaluate and respond to the threatening behavior. The team may, but is not required to, review the following types of information:

- Review of the threatening behavior and/or communication;
- Interviews with the individuals involved including students, staff members, and family members as necessary and/or appropriate;
- Review of school and other records for any prior history or interventions with the students involved;
- Any other investigatory methods that the team determines to be reasonable and useful.

At the conclusion of the investigation, the team will determine what, if any, response to the threat is appropriate. The team is authorized to disclose the results of its investigation to law enforcement and to the target(s) of any threatened acts. The team may refer the individual of concern to the appropriate school administrator for consequences under the school's student discipline policy or, if appropriate, report the results of its investigation to the student's individualized education plan team.

Regardless of threat assessment activities, disciplinary action and referral to law enforcement will occur consistent with board policy and Nebraska law.

5. Communication with the Public about Reported Threats

The team will keep members of the school community appropriately informed about substantive threats and about the team's response to those threats. This communication may include oral announcements, written communication sent home with students, or communication through print or broadcast media. However, the team will not reveal the identity of the individual of concern or of any target(s) of threatened violence unless permitted by law.

6. Coordination with the Crisis Team After Resolution of Threat

The threat assessment team will confer with the district's crisis team after a threat has been investigated to provide the crisis team with information that the crisis team may use in assessing or revising the district's School Safety Plan.

UNIVERSAL SCREENING

The District will conduct various screenings (such as the SAEBRS universal screener) throughout the year to identify students with academic, behavioral, or social-emotional concerns. All District screening tools are norm-referenced and research-based. Any parent/guardian who does not consent to the screening of his/her student must notify the Director of Student Services at the beginning of the school year.

USDA Non-Discrimination Policy

In accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from discriminating based

on race, color, national origin, sex, disability, age, or reprisal or retaliation for prior civil rights activity in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA.

Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program information (e.g. Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.), should contact the Agency (State or local) where they applied for benefits. Individuals who are deaf, hard of hearing or have speech disabilities may contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339. Additionally, program information may be made available in languages other than English.

To file a program complaint of discrimination, complete the USDA Program Discrimination Complaint Form, (AD-3027) found online at: http://www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing_cust.html, and at any USDA office, or write a letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form. To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or letter to USDA by:

(1) Mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture

Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights 1400 Independence Avenue, SW Washington, D.C. 20250-9410

(2) Fax: (202) 690-7442; or

(3) Email: program.intake@usda.gov

This institution is an equal opportunity provider.

VIDEO & AUDIO RECORDINGS

The Board of Education has authorized the use of video cameras on school district property to ensure the health, welfare, and safety of all staff, students and visitors, and to safeguard District facilities and equipment. Video cameras may be used in locations deemed appropriate by the Superintendent. If a video surveillance recording captures a student or other building user violating school policies or rules or local, state, or federal laws, it may be used in appropriate disciplinary proceedings against the student or other building user and may also be provided to law enforcement agencies.

This policy applies to students during the school day on school grounds; when being transported to and from school activities or programs in a vehicle owned, leased, or contracted by a school being used for a school purpose by a school employee or by his or her designee; or at a school-sponsored activity or athletic event. Students may make recordings of school activities in a non-disruptive manner including things like athletic contests and other extracurricular performances to the extent permitted by law. Students generally are not permitted to record classroom instruction or members of the school community during the school day without the express consent of a staff member or as required by the student's education plan. Student use of assistive technology that has the capacity to record and/or transmit recordings (e.g. AngelSense) must be approved by the student's education team or administration. Students remain subject to all other district policies and rules.

An exception will be made to this policy if photographs or audio or video recordings are necessary to accommodate a student's disability or are required by the student's Individualized Education Plan (IEP) or Section 504 Plan.

In no event shall photographs or video recordings be taken or made in restrooms, locker rooms, or other areas where there is a reasonable expectation of privacy. Students who violate this policy may be subject to discipline up to and including expulsion.

Nebraska City Public Schools

Title 1

School-Parent-Child Compact

This compact outlines how parents, school staff, and the students at Hayward Elementary will share the responsibility for improved academic achievement, and the means by which the school and parents will maintain ongoing communication to build and develop a partnership that will help children achieve the State's high standards.

This school-parent-child compact is in effect during the <u>2023-2024</u> school year.

Hayward Staff	Parents	Students
Small group instruction based on student need.	Monitor attendance	Put forth our best effort throughout the school day.
Hold parent-teacher conferences two times a year, during which this compact will be discussed as it relates to the individual child's achievement.	Participating in parent policy and advisory groups, to the extent possible.	Do homework every day and ask for help, when needed.
Provide at least four progress reports during the school year.	Participate in decisions related to our children's education.	Read every day, outside of school time.
Provide parents reasonable access to teachers through flexible appointments.	Promoting positive use of our children's time outside of school.	Give our parents all notices and information received from school each day.
Provide parents opportunities to volunteer and participate in their child's class, and to observe classroom activities.	Make sure homework is complete.	Ask questions if you don't understand something.
Provide high quality curriculum and instruction in a supportive and effective learning environment that enables children to meet the State's student academic achievement standards.	Stay informed about our children's education and communicate with the school by promptly reading all notices from the school and responding, as appropriate.	